
MEETING

GROUP LEADERS PANEL

DATE AND TIME

TUESDAY 23RD JULY, 2013

AT 5.00 PM

VENUE

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, NW4 4BG

TO: MEMBERS OF GROUP LEADERS PANEL (Quorum 3)

Chairman: Richard Cornelius

Councillors

Jack Cohen
Alison Moore

Anthony Finn
John Marshall

Independent Person

Stephen Ross

Substitutes

Deputy Group Leaders

You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached.

You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached.

Andrew Nathan – Head of Governance

Governance Services contact: Chidilim Agada 020 8359 2037 chidilim.agada@barnet.gov.uk

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039

ASSURANCE GROUP



ORDER OF BUSINESS

Item No Title of Report Pages

1.  Absence of Members (If any) 

2.  Declaration of Members' Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Non 
Pecuniary Interests (If any) 

3.  Motion to exclude the Press and Public 

4.  To consider the findings of an investigation in accordance with the 
Council's determinations protocols 

5.  Case No. 001/13 5 - 30

6.  Case No. 002/13 31 - 60

7.  Case No. 003/13 61 - 104

8.  Case No. 004/13 105 - 280

9.  Any other Item(s) that the Chairman decides are urgent 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Chidilim Agada 
020 8359 2037 chidilim.agada@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who have a 
text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee 
Rooms also have induction loops.

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions.

You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts.

Do not stop to collect personal belongings

Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions.



Do not re-enter the building until told to do so.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

5

AGENDA ITEM 5

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



EBA-GA-010592 / 731037 Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 
 
London Borough of Barnet 
 
Report of Monitoring Officer  - Complaint by Councillor Alison Moore against 
Councillor Brian Coleman 
 

Introduction 
 

1. This report is written in accordance with the Council’s process for complaints about the 
conduct of a councillor or co-opted member. The process requires a report comprising 
purely factual findings to be put to the Group Leaders Panel. 

 
The complaint 

 
2. The complaint is made by Councillor Alison Moore. The complaint was originally made 

by email on 12 September 2012 (see Appendix 1). A complaint was also made 
regarding his references to a member of staff but it appears that this was not pursued. 

 
3. The complaint concerns a Council meeting held on 11 September 2012. It is alleged 

that Councillor Coleman described two female members of the public seated in the 
public gallery as ‘hags’. 

 
4. It was alleged in this email that Councillor Coleman’s conduct breached the code of 

conduct in that it was a failure to treat members of public with respect.  
 

5. Jeff Lustig replied to Councillor Moore on 12 September and pointed out that the 
provision she referred to was no longer contained in the Code of Conduct. He asked 
her to point to the provision which she believed had been breached so that her 
complaint could be progressed.  

 

6. Councillor Moore resubmitted her complaint (Appendix 2) and referred to Section 3 
which sets out the general obligations to act with  

 - independence 

- objectivity 

- accountability and 

- selflessness 

The personal nature of the comments made by Cllr Coleman in relation to members of 
the public gallery undermines the Nolan principles of public life which make clear that 
public life is one of public service. Cllr Coleman was required to act solely in the public 
interest and in making these remarks not only did he not do so, he undermined the 
public interest; and undermined members of the public in making what can only be 
construed as sexist and ageist remarks. 

3(3) makes clear that members must treat others in accordance with these principles 
of public life set out in (3).  

The remarks that Cllr Coleman made were towards two identifiable members of the 
public. 

19



EBA-GA-010592 / 731037 Page 2 of 2 
 

The councillor in question was given the opportunity to apologise and declined to do 
so. 

In addition 3 (4b) states a member must not bully any person. 

The comments made about 2 female members of the public who were in the public 
gallery watching the council meeting were comments intended to bully. 

 
Councillor Coleman’s response  
 
6. Councillor Coleman’s response is attached as Appendix 3 and is as follows: 
 

‘These complaints are frivolous, party political in nature and anyway as part of a 
speech in the Council Chamber just the sort of complaint the Localism Act was 
supposed to prevent  
 
As the supposed comments are general and refer to nobody in particular I cannot see 
how any individual could take offence.’ 

 
Findings of fact 

 
7. It is not entirely clear from the footage referred to whether Councillor Coleman used 

the word ‘mad’ or ‘bad’, although the word ‘sad’ and the phrase ‘a couple of old hags’ 
are distinct. Although those in attendance have confirmed that this is the case. The 
Panel will have an opportunity to view the footage.  

 
8. It is clear that the remarks were directed at the public gallery. 
 
9. The footage does not show the public gallery and cannot be relied upon to 

demonstrate whether or not Councillor Coleman was looking at anyone in particular. It 
is not known how many people were in the gallery although a man can be heard 
shouting and the complainant states that there were two women in the gallery who she 
believes were the target of the remarks made. She does not state how she knows the 
remarks were directed at two identifiable women. This could be, for example, because 
they were the only women in the gallery. This cannot be clarified without further 
investigation. 
 

10. The footage can be found here:  
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jiGOM0LbfdA 
 
 

Action: 
 
Members were sent information relating to this case and in line with the procedure asked 
to consider whether the matter was justified proceeding to a formal consideration.  In light 
of the fact Cllr Moore had made the complaint Councillor Rawlings was asked to Deputise 
for Councillor Moore. 
 

The Panel’s view was that a formal hearing should take place and that no further 
information was required. 

 
 

20

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jiGOM0LbfdA


Appendix 1 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Lustig, Jeff  
Sent: 12 September 2012 19:57 
To: Moore, Cllr Alison Labour 
Subject: RE: Last Night's Council Meeting 
 
Dear Councillor Moore, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail. 
 
You may recall that the “treating others with respect” requirement of the previous code of conduct 
is no longer a feature of the current code of conduct for Members. 
 
To facilitate further consideration of your complaint, please would you identify the particular 
requirement of the new code of conduct for Members which you believe Councillor Coleman has 
failed to comply with.  
 
In this respect, I would direct you to the following link from the Council’s website. This link will 
take you to both the complaint form and the latest version of the Members code of conduct. 
 
http://www.barnet.gov.uk/info/940146/complaints_about_the_conduct_of_a_councillor/790/compl
aints_about_the_conduct_of_a_councillor 
 
Regards, 
 
Jeff Lustig 
Director of Corporate Governance 
London Borough of Barnet, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, London N11 1NP 
Tel: 020 8359 2008 Mobile: 07985 213283 
Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk 
please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email? 
 
 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Moore, Cllr Alison Labour  
Sent: 12 September 2012 13:26 
To: Lustig, Jeff 
Subject: Last Night's Council Meeting 
 

Dear Jeff, 
 
I am writing to you to  make a formal complaint about the behaviour of Cllr 
Coleman at last night's Council meeting for both naming a member of staff 
during his speech, in which he described that member of staff's emails as 
"increasingly desparate", and for using unacceptable language in 
describing two female members of the public seated in the public gallery 
as "hags". 
 
I firmly believe that this is a failure to treat members of the public with 

21

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/info/940146/complaints_about_the_conduct_of_a_councillor/790/complaints_about_the_conduct_of_a_councillor�
http://www.barnet.gov.uk/info/940146/complaints_about_the_conduct_of_a_councillor/790/complaints_about_the_conduct_of_a_councillor�
http://www.barnet.gov.uk/�


respect and is therefore a breach of the Members' Code of Conduct, and I 
believe that the naming of the member of staff in the way it was done may 
also be a breach of the member/officer protocol. 
 
I look forward to hearing that you will be investigating both these 
complaints. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Alison Moore 

 

Cllr Alison Moore 

Barnet labour Group Leader 
 

 

 

22



Appendix 2 
 
 -----Original Message----- 
From:  Lustig, Jeff   
Sent: 01 October 2012 09:49 
To: Moore, Cllr Alison  Labour 
Subject: RE: Complaint regarding Councillor Coleman 
 
Dear Councillor Moore, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail. 
 
I do recall your opposition to the abolition of the “standards regime”. 
 
I confirm receipt of your re-submitted complaint and will be in further touch with you concerning 
this matter in due course. 
 
Regards, 
 
Jeff Lustig 
Director of Corporate Governance 
London Borough of Barnet, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, London N11 1NP 
Tel: 020 8359 2008 Mobile: 07985 213283 
Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk 
please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email? 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
From: Moore, Cllr Alison Labour  
Sent: 26 September 2012 00:10 
To: Lustig, Jeff 
Subject: RE: Last Night's Council Meeting 
 
Dear Mr Lustig, 
 
You will recall that I actively opposed the abolition of the Standards Regime and 
the watering down of the ability of members of the public (and of Council) to hold 
Councillors to account for their behaviour. This is precisely the type of siutation I 
sought to avoid in doing so. Any member of the public would quite rightly 
conclude that Cllr Coleman's comments were likely to cause offense.  
 
Given the changes made to the Member Code of Conduct and the somewhat 
laughable situation that it is no longer possible to hold councillors to account for 
"not treating others with respect", I have looked again at the guidance and am re-
submitting the complaint as stated below.   
 
I look forward to hearing that you will be investigating this allegation and the 
second related to the Member/Officer protocol about which you made no 
comment. 
 
 

23

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/�


Yours sincerely, 
 
Cllr Alison Moore 
Barnet Labour Group Leader 
 
 
 

1. Your Details  

Title: Cllr 

First Name: Alison 

Second Name: Moore 

Address: 

Barnet Labour Group 

Hendon Town Hall 

Hendon  

Barnet  
NW4 4BG 

Daytime telephone: 

Mobile telephone: 

Email: cllr.a.moore@barnet.gov.uk 

2. Are you?  

A Barnet Councillor 

3. The Member(s) concerned  

Please provide the name of the Councillor(s), or other Members, whom you 
believe have breached the Members Code of Conduct. 

Councillor Brian Coleman 

4. Section of the Code Breached  

If possible, please identify which section of the Code of Conduct you are alleging 
that the Member has breached. The Code of Conduct is appended to this form. 

If you are not sure what section of the Code applies but still wish to make an 
allegation then please write ‘unknown’ in the box. 

The sections of the Code of Conduct that Cllr Coleman has breached include 

Section 3 which sets out the general obligations to act with  

-independence 

- objectivity 

-accountability and 

- selflessness 

24

mailto:cllr.a.moore@barnet.gov.uk�


The personal nature of the comments made by Cllr Coleman in relation to 
members of the public gallery undermines the Nolan principles of public life 
which make clear that public life is one of public service. Cllr Coleman was 
required to act solely in the public interest and in making these remarks not only 
did he not do so, he undermined the public interest; and undermined members of 
the public in making what can only be construed as sexist and ageist remarks. 

3(3) makes clear that members must treat others in accordance with these 
principles of public life set out in (3).  

The remarks that Cllr Coleman made were towards two identifiable members of 
the public. 

The councillor in question was given the opportunity to apologise and declined to 
do so. 

In addition 3 (4b) states a member must not bully any person. 

The comments made about 2 female members of the public who were in the 
public gallery watching the council meeting were comments intended to bully. 

5. Details of the alleged misconduct  

Please explain in this section (or on separate sheets) what the member has done 
that you believe breaches the Code of Conduct. If you are complaining about 
more than one member you should clearly explain what each individual person 
has done that you believe breaches the Code of Conduct. 

It is important that you provide all the information you wish to have taken into 
when your allegation is assessed. Please read the guidance notes for 
suggestions as to the type of information that should be included. 

Cllr Brian Coleman at a meeting of Barnet’s Full Council on 11/09/2012 referred 
to members of the public gallery in what was an extremely personal outburst, 
which had nothing to do with Council conduct relating to public service as; 

‘mad’ 

‘sad, bad’ 

and 

‘a couple of old hags’ 

Televised footage of this reference is available online here: 
http://www.hamhigh.co.uk/news/video_of_brian_coleman_sad_mad_and_a_coup
le_of_old_hags_insult_released_1_1515115 

Signed: Alison Moore 

Print Name: ALISON MOORE  

Date: 24/09/2012 

 
 
_____________________________________________  
From:  Lustig, Jeff   
Sent: 12 September 2012 19:57 

25

http://www.hamhigh.co.uk/news/video_of_brian_coleman_sad_mad_and_a_couple_of_old_hags_insult_released_1_1515115�
http://www.hamhigh.co.uk/news/video_of_brian_coleman_sad_mad_and_a_couple_of_old_hags_insult_released_1_1515115�


To: Moore, Cllr Alison  Labour 
Subject: RE: Last Night's Council Meeting 
 
Dear Councillor Moore, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail. 
 
You may recall that the “treating others with respect” requirement of the previous code of conduct 
is no longer a feature of the current code of conduct for Members. 
 
To facilitate further consideration of your complaint, please would you identify the particular 
requirement of the new code of conduct for Members which you believe Councillor Coleman has 
failed to comply with.  
 
In this respect, I would direct you to the following link from the Council’s website. This link will 
take you to both the complaint form and the latest version of the Members code of conduct. 
 
http://www.barnet.gov.uk/info/940146/complaints_about_the_conduct_of_a_councillor/790/compl
aints_about_the_conduct_of_a_councillor 
 
Regards, 
 
Jeff Lustig 
Director of Corporate Governance 
London Borough of Barnet, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, London N11 1NP 
Tel: 020 8359 2008 Mobile: 07985 213283 
Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk 
please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email? 
 
 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Moore, Cllr Alison Labour  
Sent: 12 September 2012 13:26 
To: Lustig, Jeff 
Subject: Last Night's Council Meeting 
 

Dear Jeff, 
 
I am writing to you to  make a formal complaint about the behaviour of Cllr 
Coleman at last night's Council meeting for both naming a member of staff 
during his speech, in which he described that member of staff's emails as 
"increasingly desparate", and for using unacceptable language in 
describing two female members of the public seated in the public gallery 
as "hags". 
 
I firmly believe that this is a failure to treat members of the public with 
respect and is therefore a breach of the Members' Code of Conduct, and I 
believe that the naming of the member of staff in the way it was done may 
also be a breach of the member/officer protocol. 
 
I look forward to hearing that you will be investigating both these 

26

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/info/940146/complaints_about_the_conduct_of_a_councillor/790/complaints_about_the_conduct_of_a_councillor�
http://www.barnet.gov.uk/info/940146/complaints_about_the_conduct_of_a_councillor/790/complaints_about_the_conduct_of_a_councillor�
http://www.barnet.gov.uk/�


complaints. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Alison Moore 

 

Cllr Alison Moore 

Barnet labour Group Leader 
 

 

 

27



Appendix 3 
 

From: Hartley, Stephen On Behalf Of Lustig, Jeff 
Sent: 06 June 2013 10:02 
To: Salter, Maryellen 
Subject: FW: Complaint - Comments made at Council Meeing 11 September 2012 
 
Maryellen, 
 
This was Councillor Coleman’s response you requested. 
 
Kind regards 
Stephen 
 

Stephen Hartley 
Executive Assistant to the Lead Commissioners 
London Borough of Barnet, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, London N11 1NP 
Tel: 020 8359 2516 
Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk 
please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email? 

 
From: Coleman, Cllr Brian Independent  
Sent: 11 March 2013 13:38 
To: Lustig, Jeff 
Subject: Re: Complaint - Comments made at Council Meeing 11 September 2012 
 

These complaints are frivolous , party political in nature and anyway as part of a speech in the 
Council Chamber just the sort of complaint the Localism Act was supposed to prevent  
 
As the supposed comments are general and refer to nobody in particular I cannot see how any 
individual could tale offence  

 
From: Lustig, Jeff 
To: Coleman, Cllr Brian Independent 
Sent: Mon Mar 11 13:00:49 2013 
Subject: Complaint - Comments made at Council Meeing 11 September 2012 
Dear Councillor Coleman, 
 
I have previously spoken to you previously about a number of complaints received in connection 
with comments made at the Council meeting on 11 September, 2012. They primarily cover two 
comments, one with reference to the public gallery and the other to Mr. John Burgess. 
 
In order to determine whether these complaints should either be taken forward or dispensed with, 
I am writing to you formally to ascertain if you have any comments or observations you wish to 
make. 
 
There are four separate complaints:- 
 

28



1. The first was received from Councillor Alison Moore on 26 September, 2012. The allegation is 
that you breached Paragraphs 3(1); 3 (3) and 3(4)(b) of the Code. The details of the complaint 
are as follows:- 

“Cllr Brian Coleman at a meeting of Barnet’s Full Council on 11/09/2012 referred to 
members of the public gallery in what was an extremely personal outburst, which had 
nothing to do with Council conduct relating to public service as; 

‘mad’ ‘sad, bad’ and ‘a couple of old hags’ 

Televised footage of this reference is available online here: 
http://www.hamhigh.co.uk/news/video_of_brian_coleman_sad_mad_and_a_couple_of_ol
d_hags_insult_released_1_1515115 

The personal nature of the comments made by Cllr Coleman in relation to members of 
the public gallery undermines the Nolan principles of public life which make clear that 
public life is one of public service. Cllr Coleman was required to act solely in the public 
interest and in making these remarks not only did he not do so, he undermined the public 
interest; and undermined members of the public in making what can only be construed as 
sexist and ageist remarks. The remarks that Cllr Coleman made were towards two 
identifiable members of the public. The councillor in question was given the opportunity to 
apologise and declined to do so. The comments made about 2 female members of the 
public who were in the public gallery watching the council meeting were comments 
intended to bully.” 

2. The first was received from Dr. Julia Hines on 13 September, 2012. The allegation is that you 
breached Paragraphs 3(1) and 3(2)(a) and (b) of the Code (this numbering is wrong as it 
appears to relate to that of the previous code). The details of the complaint are as follows:- 

“On 11 September, I attended the Council meeting sitting in the public gallery. During the 
debate on One Barnet, Councillor Coleman chose to refer to residents in the public 
gallery, some of whom were heckling, as the ‘mad, the sad and’ looking from the backrow 
to Ms Theresa Musgrove and myself ‘a couple of hags’. I would like to point out that I was 
not heckling’…………I would also like to point out that some of the local residents who 
were there have visible disabilities, including one with learning disabilities. Councillor 
Coleman then laughed at residents who expressed their anger. Councillor Coleman then 
went on to disparage and ridicule a council officer by name......(Having been asked to 
apologise) he refused, sniggering at the distress and anger he had caused…..His 
comments were directed at individuals. As such and because the insults were based on 
protected characteristics under the Equalities Act 2010, namely gender (in my case) and 
disability (in the case of others) it constitutes hate speech…….Hate speech, directed at 
me as an individual, and targeting me through my gender (a protected characteristic) by 
calling me a ‘hag’ must be considered bullying.” 

3. The third was received from Ms. Helen Davies on 14 September, 2012. The details of the 
complaint are as follows:- 

“11th September 2012 Full Council Meeting Cllr Brian Coleman made sexist comments about 
people sitting in the public gallery specifically to incite hatred and disdain for those members of 
the public. He also named a Council Officer in a disparaging way and so breached the 
protocols.” 

4. The fourth was received from Mr. John Burgess on 14 September, 2012. The details of the 
complaint are as follows:- 

29

http://www.hamhigh.co.uk/news/video_of_brian_coleman_sad_mad_and_a_couple_of_old_hags_insult_released_1_1515115�
http://www.hamhigh.co.uk/news/video_of_brian_coleman_sad_mad_and_a_couple_of_old_hags_insult_released_1_1515115�


“At the Full Council on Tuesday 11 September I was publicly named as a member of staff. The use 
of my name in a meeting where I have no public right to reply and the manner it was used was 
offensive to me.” 

Please would you let me know if you wish to make any comments on these complaints? 
 
 
Regards, 
 
 
Jeff Lustig 
Director of Corporate Governance 
London Borough of Barnet, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, London N11 1NP 
Tel: 020 8359 2008 Mobile: 07985 213283 
Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk 
please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email? 
 

30

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/�


Document is Restricted

31

AGENDA ITEM 6

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

45

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



EBA-GA-010594 / 731187 Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
London Borough of Barnet 
 
Report of Monitoring Officer  - Complaint by Ms Helen Davies against Councillor Brian 
Coleman  

 
Introduction 

 
1. This report is written in accordance with the Council’s process for complaints about the 

conduct of a councillor or co-opted member. The process requires a report comprising 
purely factual findings to be put to the Group Leaders Panel. 

 
The complaint 

 
2. The complaint was made by Helen Davies through the online complaints form on 14 

September 2012.  This is attached as part of Appendix 1. 
 
3. She alleges that: 

‘12th September 2012 Full Council Meeting Cllr Brian Coleman made sexist comments 
about people sitting in the public gallery specifically to incite hatred and disdain for 
those members of the public. He also named a Council Officer in a disparaging way 
and so breached the protocols. Cllr Richard Cornelius as Leader for Brian Coleman 
failed to intervene, although we all have a public duty to do so in a positive way. The 
Mayor also failed to intervene or distance himself from the comments so actively 
contributing to a sense this kind of behaviour is condoned.’ 

 
4. She originally alleged that this was a breach of part 5 Council protocols for member/ 

officer relations Public Order Offence - use of sexist language to incite hatred against 
women. However, it was pointed out in correspondence that she had to cite a breach 
of the code of conduct. She then sent an email on 11 October setting out the parts of 
the code of conduct she believed were relevant (also at Appendix 2). This is 
reproduced below: 

 
 

‘(1) As a member or co-opted member of London Borough of Barnet you have a 
responsibility to represent the community and work constructively with the 
Council’s  staff and partner organisations to secure better social, economic and 
environmental outcomes for all.               
(2) In accordance with the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, when acting in 
this capacity you must be committed to behaving in a manner that is consistent 
with the following principles to achieve best value for the borough’s residents 
and maintain public confidence in this authority;-   
SELFLESSNESS: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public 
interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for 
themselves, their family, or their friends.   
INTEGRITY: Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial 
or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to influence 
them in the performance of their official duties.   
OBJECTIVITY: In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, 
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of 
public office should make choices on merit.   

47



EBA-GA-010594 / 731187 Page 2 of 3 
 

ACCOUNTABILITY: Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and 
actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate 
to their office.   
OPENNESS: Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the 
decisions and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and 
restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.   
HONESTY: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests 
relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way 
that protects the public interest.   
LEADERSHIP: Holders of public office should promote and support these 
principles by leadership and example.   
(3) You must treat others in a manner which is consistent with the obligations 
set out in paragraphs 3 (1) and 3 (2) above.   
(4) You must not:- (a) do anything which may cause your authority to breach any 
of the equality enactments (as defined in section 33 of the Equality Act 2006);  
(b) bully any person;  
(c) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to be:-(i) a 
complainant, (ii) a witness, or (iii) involved in the administration of any 
investigation or proceedings, in relation to an allegation that a member 
(including yourself) has failed to comply with his or her authority's code of 
conduct; or  
(d) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the impartiality of those 
who work for, or on behalf of, your authority’ 

 
Councillor Coleman’s response  
 
5. Councillor Coleman’s response is attached as Appendix 2 and is as follows: 
 

‘These complaints are frivolous, party political in nature and anyway as part of a 
speech in the Council Chamber just the sort of complaint the Localism Act was 
supposed to prevent  
 
As the supposed comments are general and refer to nobody in particular I cannot see 
how any individual could take offence.’ 

 
Findings of fact 

 
6. Video footage does show that Councillor Coleman did address remarks to the public 

gallery. It is not entirely clear from the footage referred to whether Councillor Coleman 
used the word ‘mad’ or ‘bad’, although the word ‘sad’ and the phrase ‘a couple of old 
hags’ are distinct. However officers and others in attendance do recall the phrase 
being used. The Panel will have an opportunity to view the footage.  

 
7. It is clear that the remarks were directed at the public gallery. 
 
8. The footage does not show the public gallery and cannot be relied upon to 

demonstrate whether or not Councillor Coleman was looking at anyone in particular. It 
is not known how many people were in the gallery although a man can be heard 
shouting and the complainant states that there were two women in the gallery who she 
believes were the target of the remarks made. She does not state how she knows the 
remarks were directed at two identifiable women. This could be, for example, because 
they were the only women in the gallery. This cannot be clarified without further 
investigation. 

 

48



EBA-GA-010594 / 731187 Page 3 of 3 
 

9. The footage confirms that Councillor Cornelius and the Mayor did not intervene 
immediately following the remarks in question. However, further investigation would 
need to be carried out to determine whether this did or did not happen at any time 
during the meeting.  
 

10. Concerning the Mayor, the previous Monitoring Officer Mr Jeff Lustig who sat next to 
the Mayor in the meeting, confirms that the Mayor did intervene at the meeting and 
invited Councillor Coleman to apologise for his comments. Councillor Richard 
Cornelius, the Leader of the Council, did not intervene. However, he was not in the 
chair at the meeting and had no more rights of intervention than any other Member. 
Moreover, the Mayor invited Councillor Coleman to apologise and he declined to do 
so. Therefore, it is not clear what further engagement by the Leader of the Council 
would have been constitutional or feasible at that stage. 

 
11. The complainant does not state who the Council officer is that she refers to. However, 

the video footage records that he referred to John Burgess and his ‘increasingly 
desperate emails’. This appears to be in the context of his trade union duties. 
 

12. The panel are asked to review the film footage for themselves:  
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jiGOM0LbfdA 

 
 

Action: 
 
Members were sent information relating to this case and in line with the procedure asked 
to consider whether the matter was justified proceeding to a formal consideration.  For 
this case as one of the subject Member’s was the Leader he was not able to have a view 
on progressing the matter to the Group Leaders Panel.  
 

The Panel’s view was that a formal hearing should take place for the conduct of Councillor 
Brian Coleman in relation to the remarks addressed to members of the public in the 
gallery and that no further information was required.   

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

49

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jiGOM0LbfdA


Appendix 1 
 

From: Williams, Jeremy  
Sent: 14 September 2012 15:08 
To: Lustig, Jeff 
Cc: Giritli, Aysen; Agada, Chidilim 
Subject: FW: An allegation about Member conduct form has been received 
 
Jeff, 
 
A further complaint form for your consideration. 
 
 
Jeremy 
 

 
From: first.contact@barnet.gov.uk [mailto:first.contact@barnet.gov.uk]  
Sent: 14 September 2012 14:50 
To: Williams, Jeremy 
Subject: An allegation about Member conduct form has been received 
 
21915473 

14-09-2012 14:50:06 

Question Response 

I have read and 
understood the 
statement above: 

Yes 

Title: Ms 

Last Name: Davies 

Last Name: Davies 

First Name: Helen 

First Name: Helen 

Address details:  

Address details:  

Address details:  

Address: 6 Monro Way 

Address: 6 Monro Way 

Town/City: London 

Town/City: London 

County/Region:  

County/Region:  

Postcode: E5 8NZ 

50



Postcode: E5 8NZ 

Mobile Telephone 
Number: 

07940 189 807 

Mobile Telephone 
Number: 

07940 189 807 

Home Telephone 
Number: 

020 8533 1351 

Home Telephone 
Number: 

020 8533 1351 

Email: ayupchuck@googlemail.com 

Are you?: A Council Officer 

The Member(s) 
concerned: 

Cllr Brian Coleman Cllr Richard Cornelius Mayor Brian Schama

Section of the code 
breached: 

Breach of part 5 Council protocols for member/ officer relations 
Public Order Offence - use of sexist language to incite hatred 
against women 

Details of the alleged 
misconduct: 

12th September 2012 Full Council Meeting Cllr Brian Coleman 
made sexist comments about people sitting in the public gallery 
specifically to incite hatred and disdain for those members of the 
public. He also named a Council Officer in a disparaging way 
and so breached the protocols. Cllr Richard Cornelius as Leader 
for Brian Coleman failed to intervene, although we all have a 
public duty to do so in a positive way. The Mayor also failed to 
intervene or distance himself from the comments so actively 
contributing to a sense this kind of behaviour is condoned. 

Request for 
confidentiality: 

not applicable 

By ticking this box, I 
declare that all the 
information provided 
is accurate: 

Yes 

 
 
This email and any attachments to it are intended solely for the individual to whom it is 
addressed. It may contain sensitive or confidential material and should be handled 
accordingly. However, it is recognised that, as an intended recipient of this email, you 
may wish to share it with those who have a legitimate interest in the contents. 
 
If you have received this email in error and you are not the intended recipient you must 
not disclose, distribute, copy or print any of the information contained or attached within 
it, all copies must be deleted from your system. Please notify the sender immediately.  
 
Whilst we take reasonable steps to identify software viruses, any attachments to this 
email may contain viruses which our anti-virus software has failed to identify. No 

51



liability can be accepted, and you should therefore carry out your own anti-virus checks 
before opening any documents. 
 
Please note: Information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public disclosure 
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or the Environmental Information 
Regulations 2004. 

52



Appendix 2 
 

From: Helen Davies [mailto:ayupchuck@googlemail.com]  
Sent: 11 October 2012 17:34 
To: Agada, Chidilim 
Cc: Giritli, Aysen 
Subject: Re: FW: An allegation about Member conduct form has been received 
 
Dear Chidilim, 
I believe this section covers my complaint   
General obligations 3.          
(1) As a member or co-opted member of London Borough of Barnet you have a 
responsibility to represent the community and work constructively with the 
Council’s  staff and partner organisations to secure better social, economic and 
environmental outcomes for all.               
(2) In accordance with the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, when acting in this 
capacity you must be committed to behaving in a manner that is consistent with the 
following principles to achieve best value for the borough’s residents and maintain 
public confidence in this authority;-   
SELFLESSNESS: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public 
interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for 
themselves, their family, or their friends.   
INTEGRITY: Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or 
other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to influence them 
in the performance of their official duties.   
OBJECTIVITY: In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, 
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of 
public office should make choices on merit.   
ACCOUNTABILITY: Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and 
actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to 
their office.   
OPENNESS: Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the 
decisions and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and 
restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.   
HONESTY: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating 
to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that 
protects the public interest.   
LEADERSHIP: Holders of public office should promote and support these principles 
by leadership and example.   
(3) You must treat others in a manner which is consistent with the obligations set 
out in paragraphs 3 (1) and 3 (2) above.   
(4) You must not:- (a) do anything which may cause your authority to breach any of 
the equality enactments (as defined in section 33 of the Equality Act 2006);  
(b) bully any person;  
(c) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to be:-(i) a 
complainant, (ii) a witness, or (iii) involved in the administration of any 

53



investigation or proceedings, in relation to an allegation that a member (including 
yourself) has failed to comply with his or her authority's code of conduct; or  
(d) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the impartiality of those 
who work for, or on behalf of, your authority 
 
thanks, 
  
Helen. 
On 9 October 2012 10:31, Agada, Chidilim <Chidilim.Agada@barnet.gov.uk> wrote: 

Dear Ms Davies 

  

Further to your submitting the below complaint, we note that this is referring to 
Member/Officer protocols – please can you clarify whether there is a separate claim of a 
breach of the Members Code of Conduct.  For your guidance, attached is a template 
Allegation Form, which includes a Guidance Note for Allegations that a Member may 
have breached the Members’ Code of Code and also The Barnet Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 

  

Kind regards 

  

Chidilim Agada  
Business Governance Officer 
Corporate Governance Directorate  
London Borough of Barnet, Building 4, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, 
London N11 1NP  
Tel: 020 8359 2037  
Mobile: 07957 933 351  
Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk  
P please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email? 

  

 

From: first.contact@barnet.gov.uk [mailto:first.contact@barnet.gov.uk]  
Sent: 14 September 2012 14:50 
To: Williams, Jeremy 
Subject: An allegation about Member conduct form has been received 

  

54

mailto:Chidilim.Agada@barnet.gov.uk�
http://www.barnet.gov.uk/�
mailto:first.contact@barnet.gov.uk�
mailto:first.contact@barnet.gov.uk�


21915473 

14-09-2012 14:50:06 

Question Response 

I have read and 
understood the 
statement above: 

Yes 

Title: Ms 

Last Name: Davies 

Last Name: Davies 

First Name: Helen 

First Name: Helen 

Address details:   

Address details:   

Address details:   

Address: 6 Monro Way 

Address: 6 Monro Way 

Town/City: London 

Town/City: London 

County/Region:   

County/Region:   

Postcode: E5 8NZ 

Postcode: E5 8NZ 

Mobile Telephone 
Number: 

07940 189 807 

Mobile Telephone 
Number: 

07940 189 807 

Home Telephone 
Number: 

020 8533 1351 

Home Telephone 
Number: 

020 8533 1351 

Email: ayupchuck@googlemail.com 

Are you?: A Council Officer 

The Member(s) 
concerned: 

Cllr Brian Coleman Cllr Richard Cornelius Mayor Brian Schama

Section of the code 
breached: 

Breach of part 5 Council protocols for member/ officer relations 
Public Order Offence - use of sexist language to incite hatred 
against women 

Details of the alleged 12th September 2012 Full Council Meeting Cllr Brian Coleman 

55

mailto:ayupchuck@googlemail.com�


misconduct: made sexist comments about people sitting in the public gallery 
specifically to incite hatred and disdain for those members of the 
public. He also named a Council Officer in a disparaging way 
and so breached the protocols. Cllr Richard Cornelius as Leader 
for Brian Coleman failed to intervene, although we all have a 
public duty to do so in a positive way. The Mayor also failed to 
intervene or distance himself from the comments so actively 
contributing to a sense this kind of behaviour is condoned. 

Request for 
confidentiality: 

not applicable 

By ticking this box, I 
declare that all the 
information provided 
is accurate: 

Yes 

 

 
This email and any attachments to it are intended solely for the individual to 
whom it is addressed. It may contain sensitive or confidential material and should 
be handled accordingly. However, it is recognised that, as an intended recipient of 
this email, you may wish to share it with those who have a legitimate interest in 
the contents. 
 
If you have received this email in error and you are not the intended recipient you 
must not disclose, distribute, copy or print any of the information contained or 
attached within it, all copies must be deleted from your system. Please notify the 
sender immediately.  
 
Whilst we take reasonable steps to identify software viruses, any attachments to 
this email may contain viruses which our anti-virus software has failed to identify. 
No liability can be accepted, and you should therefore carry out your own anti-
virus checks before opening any documents. 
 
Please note: Information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public 
disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or the Environmental 
Information Regulations 2004. 

 
This email and any attachments to it are intended solely for the individual to whom it is 
addressed. It may contain sensitive or confidential material and should be handled 
accordingly. However, it is recognised that, as an intended recipient of this email, you 
may wish to share it with those who have a legitimate interest in the contents. 
 
If you have received this email in error and you are not the intended recipient you must 
not disclose, distribute, copy or print any of the information contained or attached within 
it, all copies must be deleted from your system. Please notify the sender immediately.  

56



 
Whilst we take reasonable steps to identify software viruses, any attachments to this 
email may contain viruses which our anti-virus software has failed to identify. No 
liability can be accepted, and you should therefore carry out your own anti-virus checks 
before opening any documents. 
 
Please note: Information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public disclosure 
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or the Environmental Information 
Regulations 2004. 
 

57



Appendix 3 
 

From: Coleman, Cllr Brian Independent  
Sent: 11 March 2013 13:38 
To: Lustig, Jeff 
Subject: Re: Complaint - Comments made at Council Meeing 11 September 2012 
 

These complaints are frivolous , party political in nature and anyway as part of a speech in the 
Council Chamber just the sort of complaint the Localism Act was supposed to prevent  
 
As the supposed comments are general and refer to nobody in particular I cannot see how any 
individual could tale offence  

 
From: Lustig, Jeff 
To: Coleman, Cllr Brian Independent 
Sent: Mon Mar 11 13:00:49 2013 
Subject: Complaint - Comments made at Council Meeing 11 September 2012 
Dear Councillor Coleman, 
 
I have previously spoken to you previously about a number of complaints received in connection 
with comments made at the Council meeting on 11 September, 2012. They primarily cover two 
comments, one with reference to the public gallery and the other to Mr. John Burgess. 
 
In order to determine whether these complaints should either be taken forward or dispensed with, 
I am writing to you formally to ascertain if you have any comments or observations you wish to 
make. 
 
There are four separate complaints:- 
 
1. The first was received from Councillor Alison Moore on 26 September, 2012. The allegation is 
that you breached Paragraphs 3(1); 3 (3) and 3(4)(b) of the Code. The details of the complaint 
are as follows:- 

“Cllr Brian Coleman at a meeting of Barnet’s Full Council on 11/09/2012 referred to 
members of the public gallery in what was an extremely personal outburst, which had 
nothing to do with Council conduct relating to public service as; 

‘mad’ ‘sad, bad’ and ‘a couple of old hags’ 

Televised footage of this reference is available online here: 
http://www.hamhigh.co.uk/news/video_of_brian_coleman_sad_mad_and_a_couple_of_ol
d_hags_insult_released_1_1515115 

The personal nature of the comments made by Cllr Coleman in relation to members of 
the public gallery undermines the Nolan principles of public life which make clear that 
public life is one of public service. Cllr Coleman was required to act solely in the public 
interest and in making these remarks not only did he not do so, he undermined the public 
interest; and undermined members of the public in making what can only be construed as 
sexist and ageist remarks. The remarks that Cllr Coleman made were towards two 
identifiable members of the public. The councillor in question was given the opportunity to 
apologise and declined to do so. The comments made about 2 female members of the 

58

http://www.hamhigh.co.uk/news/video_of_brian_coleman_sad_mad_and_a_couple_of_old_hags_insult_released_1_1515115�
http://www.hamhigh.co.uk/news/video_of_brian_coleman_sad_mad_and_a_couple_of_old_hags_insult_released_1_1515115�


public who were in the public gallery watching the council meeting were comments 
intended to bully.” 

2. The first was received from Dr. Julia Hines on 13 September, 2012. The allegation is that you 
breached Paragraphs 3(1) and 3(2)(a) and (b) of the Code (this numbering is wrong as it 
appears to relate to that of the previous code). The details of the complaint are as follows:- 

“On 11 September, I attended the Council meeting sitting in the public gallery. During the 
debate on One Barnet, Councillor Coleman chose to refer to residents in the public 
gallery, some of whom were heckling, as the ‘mad, the sad and’ looking from the backrow 
to Ms Theresa Musgrove and myself ‘a couple of hags’. I would like to point out that I was 
not heckling’…………I would also like to point out that some of the local residents who 
were there have visible disabilities, including one with learning disabilities. Councillor 
Coleman then laughed at residents who expressed their anger. Councillor Coleman then 
went on to disparage and ridicule a council officer by name......(Having been asked to 
apologise) he refused, sniggering at the distress and anger he had caused…..His 
comments were directed at individuals. As such and because the insults were based on 
protected characteristics under the Equalities Act 2010, namely gender (in my case) and 
disability (in the case of others) it constitutes hate speech…….Hate speech, directed at 
me as an individual, and targeting me through my gender (a protected characteristic) by 
calling me a ‘hag’ must be considered bullying.” 

3. The third was received from Ms. Helen Davies on 14 September, 2012. The details of the 
complaint are as follows:- 

“11th September 2012 Full Council Meeting Cllr Brian Coleman made sexist comments about 
people sitting in the public gallery specifically to incite hatred and disdain for those members of 
the public. He also named a Council Officer in a disparaging way and so breached the 
protocols.” 

4. The fourth was received from Mr. John Burgess on 14 September, 2012. The details of the 
complaint are as follows:- 

“At the Full Council on Tuesday 11 September I was publicly named as a member of staff. The use 
of my name in a meeting where I have no public right to reply and the manner it was used was 
offensive to me.” 

Please would you let me know if you wish to make any comments on these complaints? 
 
 
Regards, 
 
 
Jeff Lustig 
Director of Corporate Governance 
London Borough of Barnet, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, London N11 1NP 
Tel: 020 8359 2008 Mobile: 07985 213283 
Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk 
please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email? 
 

59

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/�


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

61

AGENDA ITEM 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



Document is Restricted

105

AGENDA ITEM 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
London Borough of Barnet 
 
Report of Monitoring Officer  - Complaint by Dr Hines against Councillor Brian 
Coleman 

 
Introduction 

 
1. This report is written in accordance with the Council’s process for complaints about the 

conduct of a councillor or co-opted member. The process requires a report comprising 
purely factual findings to be put to the Group Leaders Panel. 

 
The complaint 

 
2. The complaint is made by Dr Julia Hines. The complaint was made on a complaint 

form and dated 13 September 2012. Dr Hines also attached details of her complaint 
and eleven appendices. The full complaint and appendices are attached as 
Enclosures 1 and 2 (with Appendices 1 – 11).  Dr Hines states that she is acting in the 
capacity of a member of the public and as a representative of a partner organisation 
(she is chair of Age UK Barnet). 

 
3. There is a lot of detail contained in Dr Hines’ complaint including background not 

directly relevant to the complaint. The main issues stem from a meeting of Cabinet on 
20 February 2012. The relevant item concerned Network Management Policy. Dr 
Hines’ was concerned about a proposed review of traffic light controlled crossings in 
the context of the potential effect on older people. 

 
4. Dr Hines entered into correspondence with Councillor Coleman which is attached to 

her complaint. Her complaint appears to encompass the tone and nature of this 
correspondence as well as his failure to respond to a letter that she wrote to him on 28 
February 2012. This included Councillor Coleman claiming that Dr Hines has 
misrepresented the policy. 

 
5. Dr Hines also complains about Councillor Coleman’s conduct at the Council meeting 

on 11 September 2012. She states that he referred to members of public in the gallery 
as ‘mad, sad and a couple of hags’. She alleges that the ‘couple of hags’ remark was 
directed at her and Theresa Musgrove and when he made it, Councillor Coleman was 
looking at her and Ms Musgrove.  

 
6. Dr Hines alleges that the following provisions of the code of conduct have been 

breached: 
 

Paragraph 3(1) 
 

As a member or co-opted member of London Borough of Barnet you have a 
responsibility to represent the community and work constructively with the Council’s 
staff and partner organisations to secure better social, economic and environmental 
outcomes for all.  

 
 Paragraphs 3(2) (b) and (d) 
 

There are no such paragraphs in the code of conduct which was in force at the time 
the complaint was made. Therefore further correspondence was made with the 203



complainant to further clarify which parts of the Code in operation at the time were 
breached in addition to the above: 
 
3(2) - specifically: selflessness, accountability, and leadership. Furthermore I believe 
the email sent to his constituent was dishonest. 
  
3(3) You must treat others in a manner which is consistent with the obligations set out 
in paragraphs 3 (1) and 3 (2) above. 
  
3(4)(a) do anything which may cause your authority to breach any of the equality 
enactments (as defined in section 33 of the Equality Act 2006) -  the insult to the 
complainant was sexist and misogynistic and are therefore a breach of the Equalities 
Act by virtue of my gender. The insult directed to other people in the public gallery was 
also a breach of the Equalities Act - sad and mad relate to protected characteristics 
regarding disability, specifically mental health difficulties. 
  
3(4)(b) bully any person; I believe he was trying to frighten me into not putting forward 
a complaint, by showing me that he would smear my name publicly if I did so. 
  
3(4)(c)(iii) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to be 
involved in the administration of any investigation or proceedings. He knew I was likely 
to make a complaint about the defamatory email. 
  
3(4)(d) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the impartiality of 
those who work for, or on behalf of, your authority. Both councillors and officers with 
whom Age UK Barnet works were present in the chamber. The contract which Age UK 
Barnet holds benefits older people in Barnet and is a significant proportion of Age UK 
Barnet's turnover. 
 
 

Response of Councillor Coleman 
 

7. Councillor Coleman was asked for his response to the complaint about the Council 
meeting on 11 September. His response is attached at Enclosure 3 and was as 
follows: 

 
‘These complaints are frivolous, party political in nature and anyway as part of a 
speech in the Council Chamber just the sort of complaint the Localism Act was 
supposed to prevent  
 
As the supposed comments are general and refer to nobody in particular I cannot see 
how any individual could take offence.’ 

 
8. Councillor Coleman did not offer any specific comments on this complaint as detailed. 

 
 
Findings of fact 
 
9. The proposal was ‘that a systematic review of traffic signal controlled junctions and 

pedestrian crossings be undertaken with a view to removal or replacement with an 
alternative method of control where these are no longer needed.’ 

 
10. Councillor Coleman’s view expressed in the correspondence is that Dr Hines had 

misrepresented this policy. 
 

204



11. The correspondence is set out in full in the appendices to Dr Hines’ complaint so there 
is no dispute about what was said in written correspondence. 

 
12. In respect of the complaint regarding the remarks made to the public gallery, video 

footage shows that Councillor Coleman did address remarks to the public gallery. It is 
not entirely clear from the footage referred to whether Councillor Coleman used the 
word ‘mad’ or ‘bad’, although the word ‘sad’ and the phrase ‘a couple of old hags’ are 
distinct. However it was noted by officers and others in attendance on the evening in 
question that the comments were made. The Panel will have an opportunity to view 
the footage.  

 
13. It is clear that the remarks were directed at the public gallery. However, the footage 

does not show the public gallery and cannot be relied upon to demonstrate whether or 
not Councillor Coleman was looking at anyone in particular. However, the complainant 
says that he looked from the back row to her and Theresa Musgrove. This seems to 
suggest that he redirected his gaze just before referring to ‘hags’. However, the 
footage does not support this.  
 

14. The Panel are also asked to view the film footage:  
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jiGOM0LbfdA 
 

 
 

Action: 
 
Members were asked, in accordance with the procedure, to consider whether the matter 
was justified proceeding to a formal consideration. The Panel’s view was that this case 
should be heard by the Group Leaders Panel. 
 
The Panel requested the attendance of Dr Julia Hines and for the Monitoring officer to 
invite Councillor Coleman to the Panel.  
 

 
 

 

205

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jiGOM0LbfdA


206



207

chidilim.agada
Rectangle



208



209



210



211

chidilim.agada_1
Rectangle



Enclosure 2

212



Enclosure 2

213



Enclosure 2

214



Enclosure 2

215



Enclosure 2

216



Enclosure 2

217



Enclosure 2

218



Enclosure 2

219



220

chidilim.agada_2
Rectangle



221

chidilim.agada_3
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_4
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_5
Rectangle



222



223



224

chidilim.agada_6
Rectangle



225



226

chidilim.agada_7
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_8
Rectangle



227

chidilim.agada_9
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_10
Rectangle



228



229



230



231

chidilim.agada_11
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_12
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_13
Rectangle



232

chidilim.agada_14
Rectangle



 

AGENDA ITEM:  8                        Pages 373 – 395 

 
 

Officer Contributors Neil Richardson, Highways Manager (Traffic And Development) 

Paul Bragg, Highways Manager (Network Management) 

Declan Hoare, Assistant Director Highways and Transport 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Enclosures Appendix A – main road network 

Appendix B - permanent traffic signal review 

Appendix C - use of temporary traffic signals for roadworks 

Appendix D - period of operation of single yellow lines 

 

For decision by Cabinet 

Function of Executive 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in  

Not applicable 

Contact for further information: Neil Richardson, Highways Manager, 020 8359 7525 

 

 

Meeting Cabinet 

Date 20 February 2012 

Subject Network Management Policy 

Report of Cabinet Member for Environment 

Summary The report sets out the principles of an approach to managing the 
Council’s road network to reduce congestion and improve traffic flow. 

It defines and sets out a transparent  process by which issues would be 
investigated and approval to proceed would be agreed.. 

Appendix 3

233



 

 
 
 
 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That Cabinet support an approach to traffic management that maintains and 

improves traffic movement on the main road network and that the procedure set 
out in the report for carrying out reviews of the network to facilitate this be agreed. 

 
1.2 That Cabinet agree the proposed policy reviews in respect of: 

a. Permanent Traffic Signals (Appendix B) 
b. Review of the Operation hours of Waiting Restrictions (Appendix D) 

 
1.3 That Cabinet agree the proposed approach to restricting the use of Temporary 

Traffic Signals for Road Works (Appendix C) 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Cabinet 5 November 2002 decision no. 4- agreed a future strategy for traffic 

management. 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The proposals in the report will contribute to the One Barnet Plan and Corporate Plan 

priority “A Successful London Suburb” by keeping traffic moving. The attached 
appendices cover proposals for policy development in respect to permanent Traffic 
Signals, the operational hours of Waiting Restrictions and the use of Temporary Traffic 
Signals for Road Works. The policies proposed are compliant with the Mayor for 
London’s Transport Strategy. Where relevant this is noted in the report and appendices. 

 
3.2       Prioritising traffic movement on the main road network, adopting a formal procedure to 

review the appropriateness of traffic signals in the borough and control temporary traffic 
signals and carrying out other reviews of parking restrictions and features or types of 
control ensures that the traffic is not delayed unnecessarily by parking and traffic control 
features where they are no longer needed. 

 
3.3       A review of traffic signals could also contribute to the corporate priority Better Services 

with Less Money as contributions for traffic signal maintenance would reduce at locations 
where traffic signals could be removed. 

 
3.4       The London Mayor’s Transport Strategy also addresses these areas through: 

“Proposal 30: The Mayor, through TfL, and working with the London boroughs and other 
stakeholders, will introduce measures to smooth traffic flow to manage congestion delay, 
reliability and network resilience) for all people and freight movements on the road 
network, and maximise the efficiency of the network. These measures will include: 
...  
c) Upgrading, rationalising or removing traffic management equipment and optimising 
timings at signal controlled junctions to keep traffic moving 
…  
e) Planning and implementing a targeted programme of improvements to the existing 
road network, including junction upgrades to improve traffic flow on the most congested 
sections of the network, and to improve conditions for all road users” 

 

Appendix 3

234



 

 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None associated with this report. Detailed risk assessment would be carried out relating 

to the specific review as appropriate. 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 which places and strengthens the duty on public 

authorities to advance equality of opportunity came into effect on 5 April year? . This 
includes giving due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity and, remove or 
minimize disadvantages related to particular protected characteristics and to take steps 
to meet the different needs that result including taking account of disabled persons' 
disabilities. 

 
5.2 There is potential for review outcomes undertaken under this procedure to impact 

particularly on groups with protected characteristics especially disabled people, children 
or elderly people who may be more reliant on particular features to travel or travel safely. 
Consequently the procedure includes provision for carrying out equalities impact 
assessments related to individual reviews and to the identified outcomes to ensure the 
impacts on groups with protected characteristics are given due regard and mitigation 
measures put in place where appropriate. 

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance & 

Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 Finance – Proposals referred to in this report identify principles and priorities to be 

contained within the available traffic management budgets.  There is no commitment of 
additional funding. 

 
6.2 Procurement – Highway works associated with proposals would be procured through 

the borough’s highway term contracts. 
 
6.3 Performance and Value for Money – There is a cost associated with developing 

proposals. In order to limit abortive costs the initial stage of the procedure aims to rule 
out locations where achieving benefits to traffic movement is unlikely to be technically or 
economically feasible. Detailed assessment of proposals would include assessment of 
the financial costs and benefits to traffic operation as well as the impact on other 
priorities. 

 
6.4 There are no Staffing, IT or Property implications arising out of this report. 
 
6.5 Sustainability Reducing traffic delay and stop-start driving contributes to reduced 

emissions from road traffic, and, given the increased demand from the borough’s 
growing population, may limit increased emissions. However providing additional road 
capacity may also result in increased traffic demand as trips are encouraged that might 
otherwise have been avoided or undertaken by other means. 

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 The Traffic Management Act 2004 (section 16) places an obligation on authorities to 

secure as far as may be reasonably practical, the expeditious movement of traffic 
(including pedestrians) on their road network and the avoidance, elimination or reduction 

Appendix 3

235



 

of road congestion or other disruption to the movement of traffic on their road network. 
(Section 31 of the Act (the Interpretation Section of the Act) explicitly states that traffic 
includes pedestrians). 

7.2 The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 identifies that employers have a Duty of Care 
with regard to Health and Safety. There is an expectation that all risks will be identified 
and actions needed to remove/control the risk will be in place. It also identified the need 
to provide and maintain a safe working environment by the use of safe systems of work. 
The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999, states that every 
employer shall make suitable and sufficient assessment of the risks to employees and 
also the risk to the health and safety of persons not in his employment arising out of or in 
connection with the conduct of him or his undertaking. Section 3 requires the employer to 
ensure that people not employed, but who could be affected by his operations, are not 
placed at risk.  

 
 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS 
 
8.1 Constitution Part 3, Responsibility for Functions – Section 3, sets out Responsibilities of 

the Executive. 
 
8.2 Decisions reserved to the Cabinet meeting (paragraph 3.8) include:  

“Considering policy initiatives, initiating new policy proposals and determining the way in 
which policy reviews will be carried out.” 

 
8.3 Paragraph 3.10 sets out the functions of Area Environment Sub-Committees including: 

 
“To discharge the Executive’s functions, within the boundaries of their areas, in 
accordance with council policy and within budget … that relate to Highways use and 
regulation not the responsibility of the Council”.  

 
8.4 Cabinet Members’ general powers including discharging the executive functions that fall 

within their portfolio are set out at paragraph 3.3. However paragraph 3.4 states that 
“Except in cases of urgency, they will not normally take delegated decisions if they 
involve something other than the implementation of an annual Performance Management 
Plan or a decision previously taken by Council, Committee or Cabinet”. 

 
8.5 Section 6 – Powers delegated to officers, paragraph 6.1 also provides that Chief Officers 

can take decisions, in consultation with the Cabinet Member concerned to discharge the 
functions allocated to them or dealt with by them or their staff, except for matters 
specifically reserved to Executive Members, Cabinet meeting, Cabinet Committees, 
Committees or Council. 

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
9.1 In 2002 the Cabinet agreed a report, ‘Traffic Management – Future Strategy’, that set out 

an approach to traffic management that prioritised improving main road capacity, making 
these roads more attractive to use and thereby minimising levels of traffic diverting to less 
suitable routes. This defined a main road network of roads, typically carrying more than 
5000 vehicles per day. Many of these roads are also bus routes. This was based on the 
road hierarchy used in the borough’s draft Unitary Development Plan (UDP). The plan at 
Appendix A shows the equivalent roads based on the adopted UDP. 

 
9.2 The Traffic Management Act 2004 places an obligation on highway authorities to ensure 

Appendix 3

236



 

the quicker movement of traffic (including pedestrians) on their road network. This can be 
achieved by action which they consider will contribute to securing more efficient use of 
their road network or avoidance, elimination or reduction of road congestion or other 
disruption to the movement of traffic. 

 
9.3 Results from the 2010 National Highways and Transportation (NHT) Public Satisfaction 

Survey indicated that “reducing traffic and congestion” and “highway condition” were the 
aspects of highway and transport provision with which Barnet residents were least 
satisfied, but both were considered of high importance. Other areas of high importance to 
residents which received medium satisfaction ratings were “pavements and footpaths” 
and “safe roads”. 

 
9.4 Traffic movement on main roads can be affected by a range of features including 

permanent and temporary methods of traffic control such as traffic signals, vehicle type 
and movement restrictions such as width restrictions and banned turns, road humps, 
parking arrangements and restrictions, road and junction layouts and road works. 

 
9.5 Traffic conditions do not remain static and arrangements which served in the past may 

no longer be adequate. In some cases the conditions that led to the introduction of 
particular features may no longer exist. Changes in traffic patterns mean that other 
solutions would now be more appropriate. 

 
9.6 In order to effectively manage traffic on the borough’s road networks periodic reviews of 

the operation of particular features or types of control are required. These reviews would 
concentrate in particular on improving traffic movement on the main road network.  

 
9.7 In accordance with paragraph 9.8 reviews have already been initiated of: 

 permanent traffic signal review (Appendix B), 
 use of temporary traffic signals for road works, (Appendix C) and 
 review of period of operation of single yellow lines (Appendix D). 

  
 The details of these reviews are laid out in appendices and proposals relating to these 

would be progressed following approval of this report. The reviews would be carried out 
following the process outlined in 9.8. 

 
9.8 In order to enhance the process for review and make it more efficient and transparent, 

the following procedure to undertake the reviews and implement the outcomes without 
undue delay is proposed. 

 
Informal decision to review a particular feature or practice made by the Cabinet Member 
for Environment 

 
Stage 1 Initial Assessment: 

 Technical assessment to define potential sites and/or scope of proposal and 
likely scale of any alternative required (in order to exclude at an early stage 
locations or options that would be technically or economically unfeasible to take 
forward.) 

 Equality Impact Assessment identifying any mitigation or further assessment 
required at stage 2. 

 Risk assessment identifying any mitigation or further assessment required at 
stage 2. 

 Summarise scope of proposal(s) / locations to be taken forward and outline 
proposal(s) to manage impacts where appropriate. 

 

Appendix 3

237



 

Formal Decision to proceed to stage 2 made by a Cabinet Member Delegated Powers 
Report 
 
Stage 2 Detailed Assessments and Consultation: 

 Design or detailed development of proposal including engagement with 
stakeholders (as appropriate to the proposal) 

 Assess operational benefits, impacts on other obligations, policies or objectives 
and cost benefit and consider whether trial is appropriate 

 Consult primary stakeholders including ward councillors on preferred option(s). 
 Public consultation 
 Carry out trial if required 
 

Formal Decision to proceed to stage 3 to be made by a Director of Environment 
Planning and Regeneration Delegated Powers Report in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Environment. 
 
Stage 3: Implementation 

Implement works / introduce new practice 
Monitor and review 

 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 
Legal – CH 
CFO – MC 

Appendix 3

238



 

APPENDIX A 
 
Main Road Network 
 

 
 

Appendix 3

239



 

Appendix B 
 
Permanent Traffic Signal Review 
 

PROPOSAL 
 

o That a systematic review of traffic signal controlled junctions and 
pedestrian crossings be undertaken with a view to removal or replacement 
with an alternative method of control where these are no longer needed 

 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

 
o Adoption of a formal procedure to review the appropriateness of traffic signals in 

the borough will contribute to the One Barnet Plan and Corporate Plan priority “A 
Successful London Suburb” by keeping traffic moving. Unnecessary traffic signals 
cause delays and their reduction would better cater for the transport needs of 
Barnet today and into the future. 

 
o The proposal will also contribute to the corporate priority Better Services with Less 

Money as contributions for traffic signal maintenance would reduce at locations 
where traffic signals could be removed. 

 
o The London Mayor’s Transport Strategy also addresses these areas through: 

“Proposal 30: The Mayor, through Transport for London, and working with 
the London boroughs and other stakeholders, will introduce measures to 
smooth traffic flow to manage congestion …  These measures will include 
…c) upgrading, rationalising or removing traffic management equipment 
and optimising timings at signal controlled junctions to keep traffic moving 
…”  

 
RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 

 
o Removal of traffic signal control, especially for pedestrians, is an issue that 

engenders strong opinions and may contribute to negative publicity and public 
perceptions regarding safety. A structured procedure for considering the impacts 
of the proposal will mitigate this to some extent. However it is not possible to 
mitigate entirely the risk that an accident or accidents may take place shortly after 
implementation.  

 
o There is a risk that the removal of facilities could disadvantage some equalities 

groups, leading to legal challenge and adverse publicity. The procedure has been 
developed to ensure the impacts on groups with protected characteristics are 
given due regard and mitigation measures put in place in consultation with 
representative groups or individuals to minimise this risk. 

 
o Removal of traffic signals in some locations could increase congestion and delays. 

Modelling the proposals and/or carrying out trials will help to identify whether 
alternative control will adequately handle the traffic demands. 

 
o There is a cost associated with developing proposals. In order to limit abortive 

costs the initial stage of the procedure aims to rule out locations where acceptable 
alternative control is unlikely to be technically or economically feasible. 

 
EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

Appendix 3

240



 

 
o Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 which places and strengthens the duty on 

public authorities to advance equality of opportunity came into effect on 5 April 
2011 

 
o This includes giving due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity 

and, remove or minimize disadvantages related to particular protected 
characteristics and to take steps to meet the different needs that result including 
taking account of disabled persons' disabilities. 

 
o Traffic signal controlled junctions and stand-alone pedestrian crossings provide 

assistance to many pedestrians crossing busy roads. They can provide particular 
benefits for members of the community who are less able to judge whether it is 
safe to cross, or less confident that they can do so.  This may include disabled 
people, elderly people and children and their carers. 

 
o Signal controlled crossings whether stand-alone or at a junction usually 

incorporate audible and/or tactile signals (bleeping or a rotating cone beneath the 
push button unit) to assist blind or partially sighted users.  

 
o The positive invitation to cross can also provide reassurance that may allow 

wheelchair users and others with reduced mobility to cross more easily and allow 
learning disabled people or children to cross independently when they might 
otherwise not be able to. Parents and other carers supervising small children may 
also find the reassurance of a signalled crossing particularly helpful. 

 
o The extent to which users of individual junctions and crossings are reliant on 

traffic signals for safety and to allow them to travel around the borough confidently 
will vary depending on the levels of vehicular and pedestrian traffic and the mix of 
users due to the local environment and facilities e.g. town centre, local schools 
etc. 

 
o If traffic levels are particularly low, removal of the signal facility may be possible 

without adversely affecting any users. In other cases alternative methods of 
control (such as zebra crossings, mini-roundabouts, pedestrian refuges or other 
alternative road layouts) could provide a suitable alternative. In some cases it will 
not be economically possible to provide an alternative that would not 
disadvantage people with one or more protected characteristic while still catering 
for traffic requirements. 

 
o In order to assess the potential for removal of the traffic signals and the types of 

alternative control that might be needed to achieve this, the proposed review 
procedure includes carrying out a site specific equality impact assessment taking 
into account the characteristics of the particular location and likely users and 
consultation with stakeholders representative of older people, disabled people 
(sight, mobility, learning disability), children and carers to develop suitable 
alternative controls. 

 
 

USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance & Value 
for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 

 
o Finance Traffic signal maintenance payments made to Transport for London (TfL) 

amount to approximately £460,000 per annum (2011/12). Annual maintenance 

Appendix 3

241



 

costs per aspect (an aspect can be thought of as a “lightbulb” so each red, amber 
or green light, each red or green man signal, and each push button unit are an 
aspect) is currently approximately £80 (the saving from removal of older units may 
be more). A stand alone pedestrian crossing would have at least 18 aspects so 
the annual maintenance cost would be at least £1,440.  A simple cross roads 
junction without pedestrian signals would have at least 24 aspects so an annual 
maintenance cost of at least £1,920 and a cross roads with pedestrian signals on 
each arm would have at least 48 aspects so an annual cost of at least £3,840. 
More complex arrangements would cost appreciably more. 

 
o Indicative minimum savings per annum for traffic signal removal, are as follows: 

 
 Signalised Crossing  £1,500 
 Small Junction  £3,800 
 Medium Junction  £4,800 
 Large Junction  £8,000 
 
 

o At locations where it is deemed beneficial to remove traffic signals consideration 
will be given to whether alternative methods of traffic control may be needed or 
not. Should this be the case, the implementation costs will be specific to the 
location and method of control,  and would be factored as part of the overall 
scheme costs and traffic management benefits before deciding on whether to 
proceed with any signal removal scheme or not. 

 
o Costs associated with removal of signals and introduction of different methods of 

control where appropriate would be secured from available Local Implementation 
Plan funding provided by TfL under s159 of the GLA Act 1999 to help implement 
the Mayor’s Transport Strategy. 

 
o Any costs incurred will be contained within the Traffic Management budgets. 

 
o Procurement Works to the traffic signals would have to be procured through 

Transport for London as operator of the equipment.  Other highway works would 
be procured through the borough’s highway term contracts. 

 
o Performance & Value for Money Assessment of proposals for individual sites 

would include assessment of the financial costs and benefits and changes in 
delays and accidents at the junction. 

 
o There are no Staffing, IT or Property implications arising out of this report. 

 
o Sustainability Reducing traffic signal aspects will also reduce the electricity 

requirement for the signals leading to indirect reductions in CO2 emissions.  Less 
stop-start driving also contributes to reduced emissions from road traffic. 

 
LEGAL ISSUES 

 
o The Traffic Management Act 2004 places an obligation on authorities to ensure 

the expeditious movement of traffic on their road network. 
 

o The GLA Act 1999 s245 and the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 s74A  provides 
for Transport for London to operate and maintain traffic signals on borough roads. 

 

Appendix 3

242



 

o The Equality Act 2010 s149 places a duty on public authorities to advance 
equality of opportunity. 

 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

o Traffic signals have been introduced at junctions and to provide pedestrian crossing 
facilities at many locations in the borough. In some cases the conditions that lead to 
their introduction may no longer exist, or changes in traffic patterns may have mean 
that other solutions would be more appropriate. The unnecessary retention of 
signals leads to traffic delays and congestion. 

 
o The borough’s Network Management Duty to ensure the expeditious movement of 

traffic, including pedestrians, on its road network includes considering how the 
operation of traffic signals in the borough impacts on congestion and traffic 
movement.  

 
o Traffic signals on all borough roads in Barnet are operated and maintained by 

Transport for London. The cost of maintenance is met by the borough in accordance 
with agreements between the boroughs made through London Councils.  In making 
changes to the operation of these they are required to consult the borough.  The 
borough can also introduce signals and instigate amendments and removals with 
TfL’s agreement. 

 
o In order to identify locations where traffic signals are no longer the most appropriate 

means of control, a procedure for reviewing the borough’s traffic signals and 
identifying alternative traffic management arrangements has been developed. 

 
o Transport for London, in furthering the Mayor’s Transport Strategy is also reviewing 

traffic signals provided on their own and borough roads, with a view to smoothing 
traffic flow and improving the street environment. 

 
o The impact of removing traffic signal control may have adverse impacts on disabled 

people, older people, children and carers of children (who are disproportionately 
female) depending on the characteristics of the individual site and the alternative 
methods of control identified. In order to consider the scale and impact of this, 
locations where the removal of signal control appears feasible will be subject to an 
individual equality impact assessment and consultation with stakeholders 
representative of older people, disabled people (sight, mobility, learning disability), 
children and carers.   

 
Assessment Procedure 

 
The assessment procedure is to be divided in two stages (plus an implementation phase) as 
detailed below. Formal approval to proceed between stages will be sought by officers in 
accordance with paragraph 9.8 of the main report.  Given the relatively low cost of stage 1 
the initial site selection is to be carried out by officers but will also take into consideration 
locations suggested by elected members and local residents.  Results will be presented in a 
Cabinet Member Delegated Powers Report to decide whether or not to develop a proposal 
to remove or replace the signals and progress to public consultation, with the final decision 
to proceed with removal and implementation of alternative measures as appropriate made 
by the Director of Planning, Environment and Regeneration in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member.  

 

Appendix 3

243



 

As the borough has over 130 sites operating traffic signals, their review will be carried out in 
batches rather than all at once.  

Appendix 3

244



 

 

Appendix C 
 
Use of Temporary Traffic Signals for Road Works 
 
It is well known that road works are the cause of delays and disruption, however 
many are essential to enable improved services for road users and consumers. It is 
therefore necessary to fully utilise existing legislation and our general powers as a 
highway authority to manage all proposed road works on our roads in order to keep 
disruption to an absolute minimum.  
 
Whilst road works are being carried out it is common practice for works promoters 
to use temporary traffic signals in order to safely control traffic movement through 
road works sites. This method would usually be adopted where works are being 
carried out in close proximity to road junctions and where the road is being 
narrowed due to the works such that only a single file of traffic is possible. 
Clearly, the use of traffic signals disrupts traffic flow and adds to congestion and 
journey times. This can be compounded if the signals are not properly set up, 
maintained and actively managed.  
 
The Council have been keen to explore ways to minimise this disruption and with 
this in mind, advice has been sought from Counsel on the possibility of a ban on the 
use of temporary/portable traffic lights by those organisations engaged in road 
works within the borough, this includes, in particular, statutory undertakers but also 
the authority’s promoted works via its term contractors and DLO. The summary of 
the advice is provided below: 
 The proposal to ban temporary portable traffic lights is not advisable.  It would 

be subject to challenge.  We would be unlikely to succeed if challenged as it 
is a decision that would be deemed as ultra vires and an ‘irrational exercise of 
the decision making power and be liable to be quashed for those reasons’.  

 It would also be contrary to health and safety policies and expose the 
Highway Authority to a ‘potentially massive liability’, 

 
Counsel has suggested possible other means detailed below, using existing 
legislation, to ease the traffic flow problems when the works are being carried out.  
 
The Proposed Way Forward - Restrictions on the use of Temporary Traffic 
Signals 

On the basis of the advice further consideration has been given to alternative 
options, short of a ban and these are identified below: 

This will include making it clear to all works promoters that the Authority expect 
temporary traffic signals to ONLY be proposed where they are absolutely essential 
having evaluated all alternative options. The Authority will expect detailed proposals 
to be submitted with sufficient supporting evidence which will include identifying all 
other options considered and the reasons why they were discounted as not being 
appropriate. Failure on the part of the works promoter to provide sufficient detail will 
lead to non-approval and hence ultimately delays in granting works permits. 

Appendix 3

245



 

 

It is further proposed that the following requirements will be used to either restrict 
usage or to enforce compliance with conditions which will be attached to any 
permissions granted in the future with regard to works and in particular those that 
require the use of temporary traffic signals. 

 

Secure compliance with all conditions imposed upon Portable Traffic Lights 

Approvals. 

 

The general power to regulate temporary works is set out in s.14(1) Road Traffic 

Regulation Act 1984, it applies when the Traffic Authority (TA) consider that the traffic 

on the road should be restricted or prohibited due to road works, or likelihood of 

danger.  It allows the TA to order, restrict or prohibit temporarily the use of that road, 

or of any part of it, by vehicles, or vehicles of any class, or by pedestrians, to  such 

extent and subject to such conditions or exceptions as they may consider 

necessary.’ 

It allows the TA to attach such conditions to a street works licence as it considers 

appropriate (New Roads and Street Works Act 1991 s 50(4), Sch 3 para 3) for 

reasons of  

(1) safety;  

(2) to minimise the inconvenience to persons using the street, having regard in 

particular to the needs of persons with a disability; or  

(3) to protect the structure of the street and the integrity of apparatus in it; 

 

Conditions can also be attached to Permits at the point they are granted, some of 

which are standard conditions already set out as part of the London Permitting 

Scheme and other local conditions can also be attached. Failure to adhere to 

standard conditions can lead to Fixed Penalty Notices being issued by the TA. It is 

therefore proposed to put arrangements in place to commence with the issuing of 

FPN’s when non-compliance of such conditions is identified. This will encourage 

improved compliance and assist in minimising the impact of the works. 

 

In order to facilitate compliance it is proposed that the existing Temporary Traffic 

Signals Notification forms are redrafted to include a number of additional conditions 

which will include requirements to: 

 

Provide details of why the works promoter believes that they can only undertake the 

proposed works with the use of temporary traffic signals. The detail expected in this 

Appendix 3

246



 

 

respect should include identifying other options considered and why they have been 

discounted as not being viable and/or appropriate and hence justifying that temporary 

traffic signals are really the only viable option in order to complete the works in a safe 

manner. Failure to show that all possible options have been properly considered will 

lead to the TA requesting the Works Promoter to further consider alternative options 

as in the TA’s view justification of the need has not be adequately demonstrated.   

 

Further conditions/requirements will include the following: 

 

1) ‘Work activity must be ongoing on site at all times while signals are being 

used, unless otherwise directed by the highway authority and in regard to 

NRSWA s66.’ (para 20 Guidance Notes NSWHG Application Pack) 

Failure to adhere to s.66, i.e. ‘carry on and complete the works with all such dispatch 
as is reasonably practicable’…‘commits an offence and is liable on summary 
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3’ .   

It is therefore proposed to attach this requirement to the Permit granted for the works 
to take place and to actively enforce non-compliance. 

 

2) Vehicle Actuation (VA) 

 

‘All equipment used on public roads must be capable of working in Vehicle 

Actuated (VA) mode. These signals use detectors to monitor traffic flows and 

use this information to adjust the length of the signal green time to reduce 

delays. VA mode should always be used unless there is a specific reason, 

such as using the manual mode on a short-term basis to move plant into, or 

out of, the controlled area. Use of VA will help to reduce unnecessary delays.’ 

 

This will also be attached as a condition to all Permits when they are granted 

and any identified non-compliance will be dealt with accordingly.  

 

3)  Ensuring Signals are operating efficiently and removed at appropriate 

times including a requirement for regular checks by the installer: 

 
‘The operation of the signal controller should be checked regularly, at least daily. If 

portable traffic signals are on site but not in use, the signal heads and associated 

signs should be turned away from oncoming vehicles, or covered.  

Appendix 3

247



 

 

When the workman leaves a site at the end of the working day consideration should 

be given to rearranging the signs, barriers and cones in order to minimise the 

restricted area. If this action allows appropriate space for two way traffic flow to be 

temporarily reinstated over the non-working night period, then in such situations, the 

signals should be switched off and turned away from oncoming vehicles, or covered 

and the advance warning signs rearranged as necessary. 

A sign warning of portable traffic signals when none exist is frustrating for drivers and 

brings road works signs/signals into disrepute.  All signs and signals should be 

removed as soon as the works are complete.’ 

and 

‘On site, the following should be checked at least daily:  

 safety/stability of signals and lamp integrity;  

 cables, for security and damage;  

 signal heads and detectors for correct alignment;  

 timings, to ensure correct VA operation; and  

 power supply, to ensure continuous operation until at least the 

next maintenance inspection visit.  

 Signal head lenses should be cleaned regularly. The interval 

will depend on the site condition but should be not less than 

once per week.’ 

 

The above will also be attached as a condition to all Permits when they are 

granted and any identified non-compliance will be dealt with accordingly.  

 

4)  Maintenance Arrangements: 

 

‘Switching signals to Fixed Time (FT) is a temporary expedient and not a solution 

for faulty VA. If equipment cannot be repaired, a replacement should be provided. 

Permanent use of FT will not be acceptable.’ 

This will also be attached as a condition to all Permits when they are granted 

and any identified non-compliance will be dealt with accordingly.  

  

 

5) Restricting length of working area: 

 

Appendix 3

248



 

 

‘In general, a long working area (working length) will result in long all-red settings 

and consequently longer queues. It is recommended that the minimum length 

necessary is used, with a maximum of 300m.  Working length will be discussed at 

an early stage and an appropriate length will be agreed depending on the 

hierachy of the road and the impact on the surrounding network. 

 

The agreed maximum length will also be attached as a condition to all Permits 

when they are granted and any identified non-compliance will be dealt with 

accordingly.  

 

6) Statutory requirement that STOP/GO boards should be available in case 

PTL signals break down. 

    Arrangements must be place to deal immediately with a breakdown of signals. 

This will include stop/go boards being on site as a back up and immediately utilised 

as and when necessary. 

 

This will also be attached as a condition to all Permits when they are granted and any 

identified non-compliance will be dealt with accordingly.  

 

 

7) Avoiding unnecessary delay or obstruction 

 

s.66(3) NRSWA 91 states: 

Avoidance of unnecessary delay or obstruction. 

‘…(3) Where an undertaker executing any street works creates an obstruction 

in a street to a greater extent or for a longer period than is reasonably 

necessary, the street authority may by notice require him to take such 

reasonable steps as are specified in the notice to mitigate or discontinue the 

obstruction. 

 

(4) If the undertaker fails to comply with such a notice within 24 hours of 

receiving it, or any longer period specified in the notice, the authority may 

take the necessary steps and recover from him the costs reasonably incurred 

by them in doing so.’ 

�

This provision will be emphasised in advance of all works and it will made 

clear to the Statutory Undertakers that financial penalties will be imposed and 

Appendix 3

249



 

 

enforced in respect of even modest overruns, that would encourage them to 

ensure that periods of disruption were kept to a minimum.  

 

Arrangements will be put in place to deal with all identified non-compliance and 

efficient enforcement of such provisions will be instigated. 

It is believed that by introducing such restrictions and by ensuring strict compliance 

the works promoters will be encouraged to better plan future works with a greater 

focus on minimising their impact.  

 

Appendix 3

250



 

 

Appendix D 
 
Review of the Operation Hours of Waiting Restrictions 
 
Proposal 
 
That a review of single yellow lines in the borough currently operative after 6.30pm is 
undertaken, with a view to proposing a standardised 6.30pm end time . 
 
Background  
 
The current operational hours of approximately 30 single yellow line waiting 
restrictions within the borough operate later than 6.30pm. It is intended to investigate 
the reasons for these timings with a view to considering the merits and implications of 
standardising end times to 6.30pm.  
 
Issues 
 
Waiting restrictions have been introduced at various locations across the borough in 
order to address specific issues such as: 
 

 Flow of Traffic  
 Junction Protection 
 Prevention of all day parking around town centres or stations. 
 Safety  
 Visibility 

 
Waiting restrictions across the borough currently operate at a variety of times 
depending on their location, and there are various reasons for the differing restriction 
times, such as the restriction being located within the boundaries of a Controlled 
Parking Zone, Town Centre or on the Strategic Road Network (SRN).  There are also 
an number of sites where yellow lines have been introduced where there are 
particular safety or traffic flow issues such as junctions, bus routes, near schools, 
parades of shops outside town centres, or heavily trafficked routes. 
 
As it stands there are approximately 140 different single yellow line restrictions in the 
borough, with different days, start times and finish times of operation.  Of these there 
are approximately 30 restrictions which end later than 6.30pm, with 7 different end-
times (7pm, 8pm, 8.30pm, 9pm, 10pm, 11pm and midnight) 
 
Controlled Parking Zones 
 
A Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) is an area where every length of kerbside is made 
up of yellow lines or parking places, designed to provide parking places at safe 
locations to cater for the demands of an area, whilst prohibiting parking from 
occurring at all other lengths of road such as at junctions or across/too close to 
vehicle crossovers and other entrances to properties. 
 
A number of CPZs already operate all day with restrictions currently ending at 
6:30pm and the majority of CPZs in the borough operate for only an hour during the 
day so would not be affected by any change to standardise the end-times to 6.30pm.   
 
However, the Council does have certain CPZs where the restrictions operate for later 
than 6.30pm in order to deal with local parking demands. For example: 

Appendix 3

251



 

 

 
 Edgware CPZ has an 8am to 9pm Monday to Sunday restriction applying to 

the CPZ covering Chilton Road, Garden City and Manns Road. 
 Cricklewood CPZ has 8am to 10pm Monday to Sunday restrictions applying 

to the CT Terraces and CW The Groves 
 
In considering whether yellow lines in these CPZs should be amended to reflect a 
6.30pm end time, the effect on the local community should be taken into 
consideration, particularly as these areas may have a later end-time to ensure that 
the roads are not impacted on by motorists visiting local attractions eg: bingo hall, 
restaurants, other evening/late night establishments.   
 
It should be noted that both the Edgware CPZ and Cricklewood CPZ areas referred 
to above have active residents’ associations, who have in the past actively liaised 
with the Council in relation to the current hours of control, so it is likely there would be 
local opposition to a change to a lesser restriction. 
 
Changes to the yellow lines in these areas can be proposed, and the Council would 
consider any objections received in its usual way.  If changes were ultimately made, 
this would result in the CPZ being downgraded to end at 6.30pm and reflected in 
CPZ entry signage (the CPZ entry signage actually refers to the yellow lines in that 
CPZ), but the parking places still operating as they currently do.  Such signage would 
be correct and the scheme would not need any additional signage erected, although 
the public may need time to get used to the entry signage referring to yellow lines 
only, with the parking places having its own signage according to their particular 
restrictions. 
 
Strategic Road Network 
 
Restrictions on certain lengths of the Strategic Road Network (SRN) operate at 
various times including between 7am and 7pm Monday to Saturday, (or At Any Time 
on junctions).  ‘Tidal’ restrictions operate on certain lengths of the SRN between 7am 
and 10am and 4pm and 7pm to maintain the flow of traffic whilst allowing parking to 
take place outside the peak traffic periods.  Whilst the Council could look into 
changing the end time of the 7pm restrictions so they end at 6.30pm, the Council 
would need agreement from Transport for London (TfL) through a network assurance 
process.  On the face of it however, reducing the operating times of yellow lines 
would probably not be a proposal which TfL would support, as it could be seen as 
reducing their effectiveness and have the potential to increase congestion on the 
SRN. However  the Council can propose to make the relevant changes and then 
enter into discussions with TfL about the best way forward. 
 
Junctions and Other locations 
 
In other locations across the borough where existing waiting restrictions differ from 
8am – 6.30pm time period, the restrictions have usually been implemented to 
improve junction safety, or address a specific issue to address local needs.  For 
example, waiting restrictions outside or near schools, matchday waiting restrictions 
for Barnet Football Club, one hour restrictions near stations, and 8,30pm/midnight 
ending restrictions on other routes.  It would be possible to carry out a review of 
these locations however, although in some cases a reduction to 6.30pm may be 
problematic from a traffic flow/access aspect, particularly if there are local evening 
attractions nearby. 
 
Is 6:30pm an appropriate end time? 

Appendix 3

252



 

 

 
6:30pm could be considered to be an appropriate end time for waiting restrictions as 
it covers the evening peak hours and also allows motorists to park in the evenings, It 
and has for decades traditionally considered to be a ‘standard’ single yellow line end 
time  by the motoring public. 
 
However, in certain locations it may desirable to increase the operation times in 
certain locations to ‘At Any Time’ (AAT) restriction as at particular locations it is not 
considered acceptable for parking to occur at all times as parking can present a 
safety implication.  In these circumstances there will be a cost implication linked to 
upgrading the line however, it is possible to remove the signage adjacent to at any 
time restrictions therefore would reduce street clutter, and ongoing maintenance 
costs. 
 
Signage 
 
The Traffic Sign Regulations and General Direction 2002 requires, with the exception 
of At any Time waiting restrictions in most circumstances; waiting and loading 
restrictions to be accompanied by signage indicating the restriction or prohibition that 
applies. The absence of signage would render the restriction/prohibition 
unenforceable.  The exceptions to this are those waiting restrictions in CPZs which 
operate at the same time of that CPZ where the CPZ entry sign indicates the hours of 
operation of the yellow lines.  The standardisation of end time of waiting restriction 
would not remove the requirement to sign waiting restrictions.  
 
Enforcement 
 
Reduction of the hours of operation of yellow lines could impact on the level of 
resources so the opportunity should be taken to review deployment and number of 
Civil Enforcement Oficers. Management of enforcement is likely to be easier with 
standard times including improved motorist clarity, however, if certain sections of 
lines are increased to AAT there will be implications on enforcing through the night. 
 
Risks 
 

 A general standardisation of waiting restrictions may result in inappropriate 
restriction times being applied in certain locations. 

 Cost implication relating to sign changes (should be limited lines changes 
required) 

 Impact of public amenity. 
 Consideration should be given to any potential impacts on the contracted out 

services in the Parking Section, should widescale on-street changes result in 
material changes to the contract conditions. 

 
Long-term 
 
Once an agreement has been reached on the timings of waiting restrictions a review 
of the criteria for implementing yellow lines will be carried out ensure more 
streamlined process. 
 
Environmental/Streetscene Impact 
 
The amendment of current waiting restrictions to end at 6.30pm would not 
necessarily have any negative impact on the streetscene in areas outside of CPZs as 

Appendix 3

253



 

 

technically there should be posts and signs on-street already advising the motorist of 
the current restrictions which are in place.  As such the only work required outside of 
CPZs should be a replacement of signage. The replacement of the signage may be 
able to be carried out through the use of stickers. 
 
However, within a CPZ, the main requirement would be to replace the CPZ entry 
signage as it is this signage which refers to all ‘CPZ-hours’ yellow lines, which is why 
is a requirement to sign all single yellow lines in a CPZ if they are lengths which differ 
from the overall CPZ restriction.  As with non-CPZ signage, the signage changes 
may be able to be carried out through the use of stickers over existing signage. 
 
Cost implications 
 
Downgrading certain single yellow lines so they end at 6.30pm would require signage 
changes at an approximate unit cost of approximately £35 although stickers would be 
significantly cheaper.  Further work would be required to determine approximate 
costs, once a way forward is agreed. 
 
In addition the statutory process in advertising and finalising any proposed changes 
could have a cost of approximately £5,000 which would include notices being 
published in the local Press and London Gazette for both the consultation stage and 
finalising of the process, as well as notices being erected on-street at all the affected 
locations. 
 
Review Process 
 
It should be mentioned that some single yellow lines have accompanying and 
complementary loading restrictions, so also reviewing the loading restriction aspect 
should also be within scope of this exercise. 
 
Upon approval of recommendation 1.2  of this report, Officers will establish where the 
relevant locations are and review the relevant lengths, and propose the changes 
where appropriate. The assessment procedure is to be undertaken in one stage (i.e. 
Stage 2 – Detailed Assessments and Consultation plus an implementation phase) as 
detailed below. Formal approval to proceed between stages will be sought by officers 
in accordance with paragraph 9.8 of the main report.   
 
At locations where Officers consider there may be particular problems in 
downgrading the yellow line, they will approach the Cabinet Member for Environment 
to discuss the best way forward. 
 
Officers would report any proposals to the Cabinet Member for Environment and the 
relevant Chairman of the Area Environment Sub-Committees after liaising with the 
relevant Ward Members. 
 
Statutory consultation would take place on all agreed proposed changes, with a 
notice outlining the proposals published in the local Press and London Gazette, and 
street notices erected on-street.  Consideration would need to be given as to whether 
letters to ‘affected frontages’ would be delivered although this is anticipated to be not 
required if a ‘minimal consultation’ approach is adopted . 
 
The statutory consultation would give 21 days for the proposals to be considered by 
the public, and it is envisaged that any objections would be considered by the 
Director of Environment, Planning and Regeneration, in consultation with the Cabinet 

Appendix 3

254



 

 

Member for Environment, as to whether to proceed or not with the proposals (i.e. 
Gate 2 in accordance with paragraph 9.8 of the main report). 
 
Conclusion 
 
There are many locations which currently have a post-6.30pm restriction, and it is 
considered that aligning many to 6.30pm could be proposed in order to bring 
improved motorist comprehension and understanding about when it is appropriate to 
park or not. However, there could be locations which may not benefit from a change, 
and there should be scope for this to be reviewed. 

Appendix 3

255



256



257



258



Appendix 5

259



260

chidilim.agada_15
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_16
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_17
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_18
Rectangle



261

chidilim.agada_19
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_20
Rectangle



262

chidilim.agada_21
Rectangle



263

chidilim.agada_22
Rectangle



264



265



266



267

chidilim.agada_23
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_24
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_25
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_26
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_27
Rectangle



268

chidilim.agada_28
Rectangle



269



270

chidilim.agada_29
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_30
Rectangle



271

chidilim.agada_31
Rectangle

chidilim.agada_32
Rectangle



272

chidilim.agada_33
Rectangle



273



274



275

chidilim.agada_34
Rectangle



276



277



278



279



280


	Agenda
	5 Case No. 001/13
	Appdx 1
	Appdx 2
	Appdx 3
	Case No. 001/13 (Public)
	Monitoring officer report - Cllr Moore
	Appdx 1
	Appdx 2
	Appdx 3


	6 Case No. 002/13
	Appendix 1 and 2
	Appdx 3
	Case No. 002/13 (Public)
	Monitoring officer report - Helen Davies
	Appdx 1
	Appdx 2
	Appdx 3


	7 Case No. 003/13
	Case No. 003/13 (Public)

	8 Case No. 004/13
	Case No. 004/13 (Public)
	Report of Monitoring Officer - Dr Hines
	Dr Hines complaint
	Report of Monitoring Officer - Dr Hines
	Schedule of Enclosures
	Enclosure 1 - complaint form
	Enclosure 2 - Witness Statement
	Enclosure 2 - Witness Statement
	Enc 2 last page

	Enclosure 3 - Response from Cllr Coleman
	Appdx 1
	Appdx 2
	Appdx 3
	Appdx 4
	Appdx 5
	Appdx 6
	Appdx 7
	Appdx 9
	Appdx 10
	Appdx 11






